APPROVED
CANDIA ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
MINUTES OF April 22, 2008

Present Boyd Chivers, Chair; Frank Albert, Vice-Chair; ArleRehter; Judy Szot; Ron
Howe; Ingrid Byrd, Alternate; Amanda Soares, Alternate.

Chair Chivers called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Hedsthat Amanda Soares was
seated for Ron Howe and Ingrid Byrd was seated for FrdipdrtAat the March 25, 2008
hearing and would continue on this case tonight.

Approval of Minutes
Soaresnovedto approve the minutes of March 25, 2008 as amended. d.sBgonded.
All were in favor.

« Page 3, ¥ paragraph remove the word back.
« Page 3, 1 paragraph, page 4, paragraph 3, page 5, line #1 change coop to
“Co-op”.

« Page 3, 7paragraph, page 5"paragraph change irregular to “irregularly”.

» Page 4, paragraph 2 change for to “in”".

» Page 5 paragraph 2 change allowances to “allowing”.

« Page 5, 8 paragraph one line add to the end of the sentence “ad #tatie
applicant’s letter.”

7:15 PM — Continuance Case #55WApplicant: Kenneth and Holly Choquette;
Owner: Same; Location: 34 Lane Road, Map 414 Lot 146; For an appetbm an
administrative decision, dated December 5, 2007, of the Plang Board to deny the
applicant’s request for a minor subdivision to allow one addional residential house
lot.

Kenneth Choquette was present and accompanied by SharomsSoom Donahue,
Tucker & Ciandella, PLLC his attorney and Richard Lad&.R Layout & Design, Inc.
This was a continuance from March 25, 2008 Chair Chivers atket abutters were
present and none were present.

Chair Chivers noted the applicant came back with infoionaequested from the 3/19/08
meeting.

The board asked the applicant to provide drawings to shioat percentage of setbacks
and or easements are necessary to reach the 1.5 costiguoldable acres or
approximately 65,340 sq feet for each lot.

R. Ladd showed on the first plan that the entire afdhe PSNH easement was used on
both lots. Lot 146 used 20.74% and lot 146-1 used 23.3%. Also, addiamdabeyond
the PSNH easement was used to reach the 1.5 contiguddeshieiacres for each lots.



Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes — April 22, 2008 Page 2 of 10

S. Somers wanted to clarify that there are two plares using easement areas or the
setbacks but not both.

R. Ladd showed on the plan using setbacks that lot 146 used 48dld6t 146-1 used

43.5% of setbacks in the calculations. He informed thedbtaat lot 146 has a small
portion of the coop easement in the set back area btweéhiet lines can be adjusted not
to use the coop easement. The coop easement was approxoatekq ft.

Chair Chivers asked the applicant to clarify which planRkanning Board used to make
their decision. S. Somers clarified that the configarais the same as the one presented
to the Planning Board that was denied.

S. Somers and R. Ladd stated that the utility issuetbadeissues were not raised until
well into the proceedings after all the engineering lteeh done.

Chair Chivers asked if the applicant had been able to fingdhage of the PSNH lines
and S. Somers answered that she was unable to coméhugnyifurther information but
did make efforts to get in formation and was unsucckssfu

Chair Chivers noted that the applicant had answered aljjubstions asked. He then
asked the applicant when they first applied for the sudidiv.

K. Choquette replied that he first came in for an infational in 2005. In September of
2007 he came in for a subdivision, followed by meetings atoker, November and
December of 2007. The final decision was made on DecemB603,

Chair Chivers asked if the plan they submitted to the RignBioard relied on the
information of the language of the utility easemeatsetich their calculations.

R. Ladd responded that the Planning Board did not show wenaeith the utility
easement until late in the proceedings then suddenly tbeofissetbacks for the
calculations were a concern. He felt had there not IEsies with the PSNH easement
the Planning Board would have been less troubled with thacketb R. Ladd further
added he used setbacks in his calculations in the past.

S. Somers stated that part of the administrative appebe ZBA involved past practice
using setbacks in their calculations and that the Bslaodlld adhere to past practice. S.
Somers suggested that the Town clarify setbacks legediaand noted that a legislative
change was made.

Chair Chivers responded that the plan proposes to absotheadiet backs along the
perimeter utilizing land from setbacks from wetlands ansl tlulates the whole purpose
of the wetland setbacks by encroaching up to the edge witiends leaving no buffer.

R. Ladd responded that it was used for calculations onlyhatdhe actual building and
septic will be 100’ from the wetlands. Plans submitted ade@ée last month showed the



Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes — April 22, 2008 Page 3 of 10

use of setbacks. R. Ladd noted two of the plans were heso®the plans approved used
a higher percentage of setbacks to meet the 1.5 contigystarsd buildable acres. He
calculated this lot has approximately 15,000 sq feet to builanal is located on route 27
that abuts the Lamprey River.

Chair Chivers pointed out the issue of utility easemeth@use of setbacks to reach the
1.5 contiguous buildable acres has never come before thiagZBoard of Adjustment
and that is the issue that the board has to resolve.

Chair Chivers asked if the irregular shaped lot, that tesl®.01F had anything to do
with the denial by the Planning Board.

R. Ladd responded that was one of the reasons for thal.deni
S. Somers answered that this is a separate issue thdtasliscussed in Case 552.

Chair Chivers noted that there is already a house oetand if you subdivided there
will be no room to do anything per town ordinances no strasfished, pool.

S. Somers asked that the board to allow this applicédidr® granted and treated by the
Planning Board in a manor consistent with past practice.

Chair Chivers stated that S. Somers is asking the boaxoptove the subdivision based
on their interpretation of the zoning ordinances. S. @smesponded that she asking to
approve this based upon past practice of this Town and remihddgioard that under
case law that you have a duty to adhere to.

Chair Chivers responded that zoning board has examined aaidezbtouncil opinion.
Since, the board has never considered this particulag then the board is not bound by
it. The zoning board interprets the zoning ordinances separatd is not bound by the
Planning Board’s past practices and if the Planning Board has mmatékes in the past
in interpretation in application the zoning board islmind by it.

S. Somers stated she had not seen the town courtiés bnd has no idea what he
basing his authority on and cannot render an opinion tonigather he is accurate or not
on that issue

S. Somers then asked what the Town’s position is anespplicant finds themselves in
this position.

Chair Chivers stated it would be found under NH law.

S. Somers stated she is stunned to hear this ratiomaltfre zoning board and then stated
she understands it is coming from Town Council not neagssaming from the board.

J. Szot wanted to know why she would assume that.



Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes — April 22, 2008 Page 4 of 10

S. Somers answered she thought she heard her say ttee dwoderred with Town
Counsel.

J. Szot asked why she would assume the board came ttiukision as the board can
come to their own conclusions.

S. Somers stated if she misspoke it was because shghththat she said the board
conferred with town counsel.

J. Szot asked S. Somers if she was referring to a fedter Town Counsel and said the
board does not have a letter from Town Counsel. S. Goamswered no and she said
that Chair Chivers has just said he had conferred aboutptbseeding with Town
Council if she understood correctly.

Chair Chivers responded that the board did get something oisghés of administrative
blush.

J. Szot stated it was about a confidential letter serthé Planning Board that the
applicant had. J. Szot said Town Counsel correspondepadgiisged information.
Chair Chivers asked if there any other issues to discuss.

S. Somers stated that this is an administrative appfetile Planning Board decision
pursuant to RSA 676:5 Ill. stateH,“in the exercise of subdivision or site plan review
(which is what happened with the Planning Board on Decemb20®(), makes any
decision or determination which is based upon the terms of the zoning ordir@nces
upon any construction, interpretation, or application of the zoning ordinancehwhic
would be appealable to the board of adjustment if it had been made by the adtigist
office, then such decision may be appealed to the board of adjustment ursder thi
section...”

S. Somers states she appreciates that this board hagenotdasion to have deal with
this situation before but this is no different if someas denied a building permit
application and files an administration appeal of th@dihg Inspector’s decision. We
are appealing the decision of how the Planning Board integbtké zoning ordinances.

It was the consensus of the board that is why thecamplis before the zoning board.

S. Somers answered she was bringing this up because gghtthr may have
misunderstood the board say that if a decision had beele fnom the planning board
that this was an inappropriate forum. S. Somers and tiiagboard stated that they are
in agreement that this is where the issue of admatigé gloss should be decided.

Chair Chivers asked if there were any other issues. &ledsthis issue comes down to
utilization of the land to reach the calculations.



Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes — April 22, 2008 Page 5 of 10

Chair Chivers asked the other board members if they had arstiange for the
application or R. Ladd.

A. Richter noted that the applicant bought the land kngwhat there was an easement
and that there were wetlands.

J. Szot asked the applicant when he bought the landwigbded to believe that he could
subdivide. He replied no and stated he came to the Plafuagd in 2005 for an
informational on how to go about subdividing and they daiue information excluding
anything pertaining easements.

Chair Chivers asked if the setback was met from the l&alchto the wetlands or if the
wetlands went further into other properties.

R. Ladd explained the drawing showing the 100’ setback. Hedrtbat if wetlands were
on other properties within 50’ of the lot line they wouldgb®wn and there are none. He
pointed out where the test pit is shown on the drawing.

I. Byrd asked how much land and if there was frontage tbdhbk piece of land.

R. Ladd replied that there is approximately 4 acres witlfrox@tage on the back part of
the lot which continues into Raymond.

There was a discussion of lot lines on the proposediatghe question of what could be
the margin of error. R. Ladd replied the margin of eri® 1/8” every 100’and
measurements today are even better then that wittreeler equipment and the use of
satellites.

Chair Chivers if there are no more questions we wik€lthe hearing case #551 and will
hear case #552.

Case #552

Applicant: Kenneth and Holly Choquette; Owner: Same; Loation: 34 Lane Road,
Map 414 Lot 146; for a variance under 6.01F to allow one additional redential
house lot on an irregularly shaped lot.

Kenneth Choquette was present and accompanied by SharomsSoom Donahue,
Tucker & Ciandella, PLLC his attorney and R. Ladd from R&iout & Design, Inc.

S. Somers asked to go over point briefly noting thay thave met the hardship criteria
and that an irregularly shaped lot variance is necgdsaallow the subdivision. The
proposed use is residential and presumed to be reasomablasastated before the
backlands will not be built on. The lot shapes @datas recommended by the Planning
Board suggesting in maintaining the integrity of the stoatlswRegarding the spirit and
intent S. Somers understood the intent in irregularpst lot ordinances is really to try



Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes — April 22, 2008 Page 6 of 10

to prevent situations where you have adequate frontagehdolot but because of the
peculiar shape of the lot, for example in new subdinsibeing created, you end up with
pie shaped lots where the building lot becomes nonegxibecause it is squeezed into
the point. S. Somers noted there is adequate frontagelhmd the living/building
activities are going take place in the front of theplottion and not in the irregular shape
and feels the intent of the ordinance is met. S.e&sralso went over examples of other
approved lots where there are irregularly shaped lots aarvariance was not even
requested by the planning board.

Chair Chivers asked how the applicant proposed to get okdshp requirement.

S. Somers said this was done with the Boccia test.oDtlee criteria is size, this lot has
enough acreage like many other lots in the neighborhooddmguse of its irregular

shape has the inability to be subdivided. That is what sndlspecial in relation to other

properties in the neighborhood. The other aspect of thaaBest asks if there are any
other reasonable alternatives to subdivide and ther& argn These two criteria meet
and comprise the Boccia Standard.

Chair Chivers asked the board if they had any other questitaaing none he closed
the hearing for case #552.

Deliberation Administrative Appeal

J. Szot had two issues:

The first is the applicant states to their attortiegt the Board is bound by the plain
language Candia Zoning ordinances and she agrees. J Swmost#tes the zoning
ordinances definition is specific that a setback'Asline beyond which the foundation
wall and or any covered porch or portion of a building should not projetkiat means
no building or foundation can be within a setback, whictdeae board to conclude that
setbacks are not buildable.

The second is the issue of administrative gloss aBdod feels the zoning board is the
final arbiture of whether or not the planning board haspnéted the zoning ordinances
properly. This is the first time the zoning board has lzesteed to interpret this issue. The
zoning board has the responsibility to determine whatztmeng ordinances says and
what it was intended to do.

Chair Chivers questioned the board if they were bound by theppadices of Planning
Board.

J. Szot answered the board has have never looked &dinesand states it is very clear
that the definitions of setbacks prohibits building andincd be used to calculate
buildable area.



Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes — April 22, 2008 Page 7 of 10

A.Richter stated that she feels this is very irreduylahaped property. | know and
appreciate what the applicant wants to do but feelideeps too irregular.

Ingrid Byrd noted that this lot is irregular now and legadl what the applicant proposes
is two irregular lots that require variances. Sheestdahe board must be bound by
definition of setbacks which are not buildable and naties Zoning Board of
Adjustment’s decision is independent of the Planning Board.

A.Soares stated she is agreement with J. Szot andd.tBat it is clear that setbacks are
not buildable.

Chair Chivers asked the board if the fact that the toagracently clarified the definition
of buildable lot assisted the board in anyway in comin@eo tentative conclusion.

It was the consensus of the board that it did not.
Chair Chivers ask if the board would make motion.

J. Szot Mtion to Find: The definition of setback clearly states line beyond which the
foundation wall and or any covered porch or portion of building shall not préjétis
clearly states that no building or foundation of a baddcan be within the setback. Logic
would have one conclude that setbacks are non-buildatde liethe land cannot be built
upon, how then can it be used to calculate buildableager? The Board concludes that
the use of setbacks to satisfy the required buildableageris not allowed and that the
Planning Board acted according to the ordinance when thegditre subdivision.

A. RichtersecondedAll were in favor.

There was discussion of the motion and the followings wtricken and underline
wording was added for the amended motion.

Chair Chiversmoved to amend the Motion to FindEhe-definition—ofsetback—elearly
statesThat the language &ection10:05c¢ providing for 1 and % acres of contiguous land
for the purpose of accommodating primary structures andiedilprecludes any use of
that land in the calculation thereof which is withineguired setback area as defined in
the Candia’s zoning ordinances (in article 3 of the @asadoning ordinance) & line
beyond which the foundation wall and or any covered porch or portion of building shall
not project” The Board concludes that the use of setbacks tofysdtie required
buildable acreage is not allowed and that the Planning Baetetl according to the
ordinance when they denied the subdivision. A. Rickésondedamended motianAll

were in favor.

Chair Chiversmotion to find: That thedefinition of Buildable Lot as described in the
Candia Zoning Ordinance shall be interpreted as land mainabered by restrictions
such as found in utility easements and, as pertainge¢tos 10.05C does not include
such area as is required to satisfy set back requiremgtiits Candia Zoning Ordinance.



Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes — April 22, 2008 Page 8 of 10

The motion made by B. Chivers was withdrawn, when dgousmade it clear that the
issue of utility easements were not being raised ircess.

J. Szotmotion the Zoning Board contends that this is a case of fimprassion for the
board as it has never been asked to render a decisionethewbetbacks could be used
to calculate buildable land. The Zoning Board of Adjustimerthe final arbitrator to
accept the decisions of the Planning Board without conegldtie language of the
ordinance would be to abdicate our responsibility. Therddinds that the definition of
setback specifically prohibits building in setback aréa&yrd seconded. All were in
favor.

Chair Chivers clarified that there are two motions ondhe interpretation of the use of
buildable and one in respect to administrative glogsast practice and asked if anyone
would like to make a motion to dispose of this case.

J. Szotmovedto deny Kenneth and Holly Choquette, the applicant’s reqaest minor
subdivision to allow one additional residential house#se #552.

J. Szot withdrew her motion to add additional wording &oifgl her motion.

J. Szotmoved to deny their request for a minor subdivision to allome additional
residential house lot case #551. The subdivision doesongilg with section 1.02 of the
ordinance as it does not provide for “...orderly and planneavdyr...” It is the
applicant’s burden to prove that their subdivision imsistent with the spirit of the
ordinance. This subdivision creates two oddly shapedymgandered lots with a long 50°
portion that is not buildable. The proposed subdivisib@napts to meet the letter of the
ordinance but does not meet the spirit of the ordearSection 2.01 requires
conformation with the regulations of the ordinance. Bgwailhg the subdivision, a lot
that is now conforming, would become nonconforming becahseuse of setbacks
would be required to create the 1.5 buildable acres ndedudet the requirements of the
ordinance. Further the new lot created would also becoaferming as it too would use
setbacks to created 1.5 buildable acres needed to meefjtheements of the ordinance.
Allowing this subdivision would be in violation of Seati@.01 of the ordinance. Section
6.01 F of the ordinance requires lots to be regular angpbaot in shape. The current
owners of this land knew when they purchased this propeityt tvas oddly shaped and
that it had several easements. By seeking to subdivale Ithh into two buildable lots,
when the current lot meets single lot zoning requirdseis arguably a self-created
hardship. There is no hardship except the one createdaMiresm was put on paper. The
owners purchased the land with the full knowledge ofithgations on its use. Attorney
Somers argues that the Planning Board has in the past apgudddisions with oddly
shaped lots. The examples provided to the board show Itiisomwe or two slightly
irregular boundaries. None is as extreme as the tofped by the applicants. The lots
created by the applicants, while attempting to meetahgulage of the ordinance, in no
way meet the spirit of this section of the ordinanceS#aresseconded. All were in
favor.



Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes — April 22, 2008 Page 9 of 10

Chair Chivers noted that the Planning Board’s decision hasujseeld.

Case #552Applicant: Kenneth and Holly Choquette; Owner. Same;Location: 34
Lane Road, Map 414 Lot 146; for a variance under 6.01F to allow one aiidnal
residential house lot on an irregularly shaped lot.

Chair Chivers noted that the case #553 must be disposed of.

I. Byrd read into record:The Board of Adjustment shall hear and decide requests from
the terms of this Ordinance. No variance may be granted unlesofAtte following
criteria are met.”

1. No diminution in the value of surrounding property would be suffered.
Consensus of the board is no diminution.

2. “Granting of variance would be of benefit to public interest”.

Consensus of the board is.no

3. “Denial of the variance would result in unnecessary hardship to theeparising out
of special conditions affecting the land and/or buildings that distinguish tbeepy
from other similarity restricted property in the area.”

Consensus of the board is no.

4. “Granting the variance would result in substantial justice”

Consensus of the board is no.

5. “The use will not be contrary to the spirit of ordinarice

Consensus of the board is no.

Chair Chivers noted that the applicant must meet alldnteria and the applicant only
met one of the criteria.

J. Szotmoved denyrequest for a variance, the hardship was self createdgplicant
bought the land with knowledge of limitation in use, wotsistent with spirit of the
ordinance, and creates non conforming lots when thepd@r have use of the land. The
lot does not meet 6.01f of the ordinance.

A. Soaresseconded. All in favor

Chair Chivers thanked A. Soares and |. Byrd. R. Howe ardbert joined the board.



Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes — April 22, 2008 Page 10 of 10

By-Law Subcommittee Review

There was a discussion of the By-Laws. J. Szot wawotugh all the proposed changes
she had written out. The board requested S. Carriepeothe By-Laws to have on disc
and to insert fee schedule that the Planning Board uses.

The meeting was adjourned at 9:35 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,

Sharon Carrier
Recording Secretary



